
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
LAMTD BOARD MEETING 

1212 George Jenkins Blvd. Lakeland, Fl. 33815 

Wednesday, July 13, 2016, at 7:30 a.m. 

Call to Order Action Required 
• Roll Call

1. Strategic Planning Follow Up (7:30am – 8:30am)
a. Intern Ridership Survey Presentation / Chantale Jones & Chandrionna Norman None 
b. Intern “Voice of the Rider Social Media Campaign” / Kayla Green None 

2. Approval of Minutes 
a. June 8, 2016, Board Meeting Approval 

3. Human Resources / Mary Lynne Janoso
a. GEM Award None 

4. Public Comments TBD 

5. Finance / David Persaud
a. LAMTD Financial Report None 
b. PCTS Financial Report None 
c. Millage Rate Approval 
d. NTD Audit None 

6. Darby Law Group / Tim Darby
a. Purchaser of Service Agreements Approval 
b. LEGOLAND UAP Renewal Approval 

7. Employee and Labor Relations / Marcy Harrison
a. CBA Amendment 2 – Article 21 Sections 1 & 9 Approval 
b. CBA Amendment 3 – Article 19 Modes Selection Approval 

8. Board Action TBD 

9. Reports / Tom Phillips
a. Executive Update None 
b. Ridership Report
c. Proposed Elimination of Route 3X Approval 

10. Other Business TBD 

Adjournment 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #1(a) 

 
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Strategic Planning Summary Review 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips. Executive Director 
 
Recommended  
Action: Open Discussion 
 
Summary: Strategic Planning Summary provided by Dr. Ross. 
 
 
Attachments: Strategic Planning Summary 



 
 

 
 

Strategic Planning Retreat Summary 
Prepared by Larry Ross, Facilitator 

May 10, 2016 
 
Prior to the retreat a survey was administered to the board and the key staff that was designed to assess 
the current situation in the context of a SWOT analysis. The results of the survey served as the backdrop 
for the board discussions. The retreat began with Larry Ross setting the expectations for the day. 
Following a public hearing the board returned to a facilitated discussion designed to build consensus 
following a thorough review of the firm’s current situation. Close examination of both the internal and 
external dimensions was initiated in the pre-retreat interviews and surveys. During the retreat this 
information was shared and the discussion focused first on updating and building consensus on the 
position of the organization.  
 
Key Strengths: 
• People 
• Leadership (board and staff) 
• Reputation (brand equity) 
• Infrastructure (location/position) 
• Coherent government support 
• First choice for narrow market segment 
• Employer of choice 

(pay/benefits/environment) 
 
 
 
 
 
Key Weaknesses 
• Lack of resources ($) 
• Macro public perception (necessary evil, 

tolerated . . .)  
• Lack of employer support 
• Service levels/geographic coverage 
• Limited demand in primary market 
• Inconsistent branding 

 

Major Opportunities 
• Focus 
• New Ridership (economic growth, market-

driven, exceeding expectations) 
• Changing public perception (locally/ 

regionally-incrementally, not macro) 
• Millennial demographic (size, forecast) 
• Senior demographic 
• Private, “Last Mile” partnerships 
• Reputation as good stewards of tax $ 
• Empower Innovation (risk taking) 
• Become “Best in Class” (peer group) 
• Expand District boundaries (county-wide, 

Plant City, ??) 
 
Major Threats 
• Entrenched demographic (Boomers) 
• Conflicting government regulations 
• Transportation alternatives 
• Lack of relevance 
• Political shift/distrust of government 
• Labor markets 

 
There was some debate concerning the level of opportunities versus threats. Following a thoughtful 
discussion, the board reached consensus on the appropriate position of the organization within the four 
quadrant SWOT model. The internal dimension was seen as somewhat stronger (and trending) with 
some notable weaknesses that should be addressed in the near term. The external dimension was more 
difficult to assess and after discussion the consensus was that the threats were somewhat more 
significant than the possible opportunities. This results in the Citrus Connection being classified as a 



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 2 

Quadrant IV. organization with a strategic imperative to “Pivot.“ Strategic implications may include the 
sourcing or re-allocating of key resources directed towards minimizing the remaining weaknesses while 
maintaining or enhancing the strengths of the organization and developing new strategies for mitigating 
the latent threats.  
 
The discussion shifted from the current situation analysis to a thoughtful identification of the strategic 
issues under consideration. The board members were asked to review the SWOT items and cluster 
related items. The result was the identification and prioritization of four Key Strategic Initiatives (KSIs) 
for subsequent investigation and development of corresponding action plans. (see following templates) 
 

 
  

Quadrant I: 
Growth 

Quadrant II: 
Limited Options 

Quadrant IV: 
Pivotal/Change 

Quadrant III. 
Survival 

Opportunities 

Threats 

Strengths Weaknesses 

X 

X 



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 3 

 
 
Four Key Strategic Issues (KSIs) were identified during the discussion: 

1) New Ridership (outside of the traditional public transportation market segment) 
2) Five Year Focus (including vision and rebranding) 
3) Five Year CIP (reflecting Five Year Focus and New Ridership KSIs) 
4) Talent Management (acquisition, succession planning, organizational structure) 

 
 
Next Steps:   
 
The board will adopt a monthly meeting schedule in conjunction with regularly scheduled board 
meetings to address the development of strategic measurable outcomes related to each of the four KSIs. 
As outcomes are identified, work will begin on the development of corresponding action steps, timelines 
for completion and assigned responsibilities. The goal is to have a completed draft of the plan submitted 
for board approval at the September board meeting. 
 
 
The retreat adjourned at 12:30 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
Larry Ross 
 
  



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 4 

 
 
Key Strategic 

Initiative Ideal Outcome Action Steps Timeline Responsibility 

 
I.  NEW RIDERSHIP 
 

A. Sponsored ridership 
to reach X,XXX by 
2021 

1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

B. Average age of 
rider lowered by  
20% by 2021 

1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 

  

C. Percent of new 
ridership revenue to 
exceed XX% of total 
revenue.  
 

1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

D. Geographic 
expansion 

1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

E. Development of a 
comprehensive “New 
Ridership” marketing 
plan 
• Objectives 
• Budget 
• Media 
• Timing 
• Evaluation 
• Crisis plan 
• Targeted 

audiences 
 

1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

H.  1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

     
 
  



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 5 

 
 
Key Strategic 

Initiative Ideal Outcome Action Steps Timeline Responsibility 

 
II.  FIVE YEAR FOCUS 

 
A. Revise Vision  
     Statement 

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
B. Re-brand/re-name 
 

 
1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

 
C. Geographic 
expansion 
 

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
D.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
E.  
 

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
  
 

  

 
F.  
 
 

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

  



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 6 

Key Strategic 
Initiative Ideal Outcome Action Steps Timeline Responsibility 

 
III.  FIVE YEAR CIP 

 
A.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
B.  

 
1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

 
C.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
D.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

    
     

 
 
 
  



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 7 

Key Strategic 
Initiative Ideal Outcome Action Steps Timeline Responsibility 

 
III.  TALENT 
MANAGEMENT 

 
A.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
B.  

 
1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

 
C.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
D.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

    
     

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #1(b) 

 
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Survey Presentations 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips. Executive Director 
 
Recommended  
Action: Open Discussion 
 
Summary: Citrus Connection Interns on survey results and Social 

Media Campaign. 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #2(a) 

 
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: June 8, 2016 Meeting Minutes Approval  
 
Presenter: Marcy Harrison, Executive Assistant 
 
Recommended  
Action: Minutes Approval 
 
Summary:  
 
Attachments: June 8, 2016 minutes 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES 

JUNE 8, 2016 

 

 
 
   

Directors: 
City of Lakeland Commissioner John Hall - Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey – Vice Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner Jim Malless - Secretary 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Don Selvage  
City of Lakeland Commissioner Phillip Walker 
 
Executive Director:  Tom Phillips 
Executive Assistant:  Marcy Harrison 
 
 
Call to Order  
 8:30a.m. by Chairman John Hall 
 
 
 
 
Roll Call 

Present                              
Commissioner Hall                             
Commissioner Malless                            

 Commissioner Lindsey 
 Commissioner Walker 
 Commissioner Salvage 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of Minutes 
Approval requested for the approval of the June 8, 2016 LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting Minutes.  
    
                  “Approval June 8, 2016 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #2 – Human Resources / Mary Lynne Janoso, Director of HR & Risk  
GEM award given to Sheri Carlton, Call Center, for above and beyond customer service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item #3 – Public Comments 
None at this time 
 
 
Agenda Item #4 – Finance / David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
(a) LAMTD Financial Report 

 
Year to Date March 31, 2016 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 50% $6,815,536 $4,822,743 71% $10.3 Million 
Expenses YTD 50% $5,161,835 $4,201,580 81% $10.3 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through March 31, 2016 totaled $4.8 million or 71% of the YTD budget. 
 

Farebox and contract revenues reflect 95% of budgeted revenues through March 31, 2016.  The revenues are 
under budget due to several reasons, contractual revenues from RAMCO $93,000 received and contract revenue 
under budget $84,000 for UAP that lags one month. 
Farebox revenues are under budget $69,000 due to decline in ridership of 21%  
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.35 million or 95% of budget.  The total budgeted revenues is $3.65 million 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants is being billed quarterly effective fiscal year 2014-2015.  The first billing covered 
the second quarter ending March 31, 2016.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean the services must be 
provided before we receive grant assistance. The grants for the JPA were lagging but will be realized in the next 
quarter. 

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 

means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  
 

• Advertising income totaled $82,000 or 95% of budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is over budget since other reimbursements are included. 
 

• Other revenues are not significant and are on a cash basis which means these revenues are recognized when the 
cash is received and in line with the year-to-date budget. 

 



 

 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through March 31, 2016 totaled $4.2 million or 81% of the YTD budget. 

• Salaries and benefits represent 63% of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  As of March 31, 2016 those expenses totaled 
$2.99 million or 92% of the YTD budget of $3.3 million due to vacant positions. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $104,000 or 50% of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $19,000 or 27% of the YTD budget.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $198,000 or 45% YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $321,000 under budget by 11% due to decrease use of parts and supplies, a 

favorable variance 
 

• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $15,000 under budget 38% offset with revenues. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for the City of Lakeland Bicycle 
Program subscription. 

 
• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments totaled $257,000, over the budget due to 

property appraiser fees and CRA fees of $139,200. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through March 31, 2016 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through March 31st the financials reflect favorable budget to 
actual performance of $621,000 (revenues over expenses) due to receipt of property tax revenue at 95% level. 

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                                                            9/30/15            9/30/2014       9/30/2013         9/30/2012            9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)        25.50%              23.08%               25.16%             23.02%                    20.32% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                              $89.45                $86.29               $83.84                $83.62                    $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                          103,550             117,008             116,422              112,539                  115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $847,360          $1,316,739       $1,367,289         $1,317,442           $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                  1,424,965           1,647,010         1,638,470           1,452,161              1,768,087 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
b. PT Financial Report 
 

Revenue 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Revenues            
FTA 5307 Grant  $         1,125,545  17%  $        562,773   $                  -  0% 
Fares  $            186,661  3%  $         93,331   $         61,890  66% 
PCTS  $         5,245,278  80%  $     2,622,639   $     2,622,639  100% 
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     3,278,742   $     2,684,529  82% 

      
      
      

Expenses 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Labor  $         3,434,803  52%  $     1,717,402   $     1,217,858  71% 
           
Contract  $            833,783  13%  $        416,892   $        341,887 * 82% 
            
Operating  $         2,288,898  35%  $     1,144,449   $        636,879  56% 
            
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     3,278,742   $     2,196,624  67% 

      
 
*LYNX Invoices from October 16 – February 16  
 

 
c. Operations Grant / Resolution ##16-15 
The FTA has allocated funding in the amount of $89,877 with $89,877 local funds for a total of $179,754 in Fiscal Year 
2016-2017. This funding is under the 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities for operating. 
  
This funding will allow the District under this Agreement to improve access to fixed-route public transit service, service 
that decrease individuals with disabilities’ reliance on complementary paratransit service, and/or provision of alternative 
service to public transportation service that assist seniors and individuals with disabilities to fulfill their transportation 
needs in the Lakeland Urbanized Area. 
 
Requesting approval to accept additional funding under the FTA though the FDOT by way of JPA and associated 
resolution#16-15” 
                             “Approval to accept funding and resolution #16-15” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
d. Backup Server, Mail Archiver and Network Equipment 
On May 11, 2016 the Board approve the Transportation Disadvantage Capital Grant Amendment for which the District 
was to purchase Information Technologies Equipment necessitated by the Transit Disadvantaged Program.  The District 
was granted the budget revision in the amount of $158,818. 
 
On May 9, 2016, the District issued an Invitation for Bid #16-030, for qualified firms interested in providing the immediate 
delivery of Backup Server, Mail Archiver and Network Equipment that will meet the needs of the District and the 
Information Technologies Department’s Transit Disadvantaged Program. 
 
The solicitation was provided to the District’s registered vendors and state certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
and/or Minority Business Enterprise.  Thirty-three firms received notification of the posting, of which 30% were DBE firms 
found through the BizNet website. 
 
Offers were evaluated on responsiveness and price.  A responsibility review, for the selected firms, was conducted to 
ensure the selected firms were experienced, adequately staffed, and understood the requirements as outlined in the 
solicitation. 
 
The evaluation resulted in the firms of CDW-Government, LLC and Vology, Inc. being recommende4d as the most 
advantageous for the District. 
 
 
e. GEICO Bus Update –  
On May 11, 2016 the Board approve the execution of the GEICO Service Agreement for which two paratransit buses were 
to be designated for use.  The District was provided a budget Not to Exceed amount of $139,000. 
 
On May 18, 2016, the District issued a Request for Proposal #16-029, for qualified firms interested in providing two 
immediately available paratransit vehicles. 
 
The solicitation was provided to the District’s registered vendors, as well as state certified manufactures and retailers. 
Eleven firms received notification of the posting. 
 
Offers were evaluated 75% technically and 25% price.  The technical review was given a higher weight to ensure that the 
selected firm understood the requirements as outlined in the solicitation.  The price cap was stated within the solicitation.  
The price review was given a slightly lesser weight as a price cap was stated within the solicitation. 
 
The Source Evaluation Committee (SEC) reviewed the proposals received accordance with the Evaluation criteria identified 
in the solicitation.  The offers were reviewed with an award recommendation going to the highest ranked offeror that best 
demonstrated the ability to meet the needs of the District.  A responsibility review was conducted to verify the firm’s 
ability to perform the specified services.  The evaluation resulted in the firm of Alliance Bus Group being recommended 
as the best value for the District. 
 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
f. Fuel Bid Award- On April 25, 2016, the District entered into a consortium purchase with Pinellas Suncoast Transit 
Authority, City of St. Petersburg, Hillsborough Transit Authority, Hillsborough County Board of County Commissioners, and 
the Polk County Board of County Commissioners for the purchase of No.2 Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel Fuel and Regular 
Unleaded 87 Octane Gasoline.  An invitation for Bid (IFB)#19877 was issued by HART, legally advertised and publicly posted 
on their website. The price is $0.0100 over that previously paid under the HART Fuel Consortium. 
 
g. TD Grant / Resolution #16-18 
The State Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged administers the State Transportation Disadvantaged Trust 
Fund. The primary purpose of the trust fund is to provide transportation for transportation disadvantaged county 
residents who have no other means of transportation or are not sponsored for that need by any other available funding 
source. Serving as the new Community Transportation Coordinator for Polk County, the District is now eligible for these 
funds. The Financial Impact: $1,240,365 Grant Funding, $137,818 onetime local match budgeted in Polk County 
Agreement. 
 
Requesting Board approval for the Trips and Equipment Grant with the CTD July1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 with 
corresponding Resolution #16-18. 
 
 “Approval for the Trips and Equipment Grant with the CTD July1, 2016 through June 30,  
 2017 with corresponding Resolution #16-18” 
       MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
h. 5307 Operations Funding for Fixed / Resolution #16-19 
The District is submitting a grant application to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) under Section 5307 operating 
assistance, more specifically to operate specific Lakeland Area urban routes and to perform preventative maintenance.  
The pending application is in response to FTA funding apportionments for the Lakeland Urbanized Area for FY 2016-2017. 
This grant requires both 80/20 match for preventative maintenance and 50/50 match for operations, the FTA shall provide 
$2,611,507 with the District providing $2,121,849 in matching funds for a total of $4,733,356.  
 
Requesting Board approval to apply for the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307 Grant Funds, as Designated 
Recipient and under the Countywide Transit System Agreement. 
 
  “Approval to apply for the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307 Grant Funds, as Designated 
  Recipient and under the Countywide Transit System Agreement” 
 
         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
Agenda Item #5 – Darby Law Group / Tim Darby 
a. 2016-2017 LAMTD Board Meeting Schedule / Resolution #16-16 
 
Requesting approval for the 2016-2017 LAMTD Board Meeting Schedule / Resolution #16-16 
                   “Approval of the 2016-2017 LAMTD Board Meeting Schedule- Resolution #16-16” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
b.  LAMTD Board Meeting Schedule Change to add thirty minutes for Strategic Planning KSI / Resolution #16-17  
 
 Requesting approval LAMTD Board Meeting Schedule Change 
              “Approval to add thirty minutes to the LAMTD Board Meetings / Resolution #16-17” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 



 

c.  Peace River Universal Access Program Renewal 
 
Requesting approval to renew the Peace River UAP with no changes from the prior UAP. 
 
    “Approval to renew the Peace River UAP” 
         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
d.  Polk Sheriff’s Charities-Summer of Safety Universal Access Program 
 
Requesting approval of the Summer of Safety UAP allowing middle and high school students within Polk County to ride 
transit for free during the summer of 2016. 
 
    “Approval of the Summer of Safety UAP” 
         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
e.  CareerSource Agreement approval 
 
Requesting approval of the CareerSource agreement which allows them to purchase bus passes from Citrus 
Connection. 
 
    “Approval of the CareerSource Agreement” 
         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
f. FDOT Grant Transfer – Joint Participation Agreement between the Polk County Board of County 
Commissioners and the FDOT. 
 
Requesting approval of the FDOT Grant transfer. 
 
  “Approval of the FDOT Grant transfer/Joint Participation Agreement” 
    MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 – Government & Community Relations / Erin Killebrew 
a. Presentation given to the Board of the “DC Fly In” conference. 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #7  -  Board Action  
None at this time 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

Agenda Item #9 – Executive Update / Tom Phillips 
a.  May Activity Calendar presented to the Board (Informational Only) 
 
b.  UAP updated report presented to the Board (Informational Only) 
 
c.  Strategic Planning Summary – KSI distributed and will be discussed at the July13th meeting 
 
d. District Updates: 

• Performance Reviews will begin for the District in May with the process completed by June 2016. 
• Employee Morale survey will be launched this summer. 
• A formal recommendation will be brought to the Board, senior staff is in complete concurrence. Now 

that we have two (2) Sunday routes and three (3) Saturday passes will expire 24hrs post the purchase 
time.  This is a fair increase and will be publically noticed in June and brought to the Board in July for 
approval. 

 
Agenda Item #10 – Other Business 
None 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
Approved this 13th day of April, 2016. 
 
______________________________________                         _____________________________ 
Chairman – Commissioner John Hall    Minutes Taker – Marcy Harrison 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #3(a) 

 
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: GEM Award  
 
Presenter: Mary Lynne Janoso, Director of Risk & HR 
 
Recommended  
Action: GEM recognition 
 
Summary: Oral presentation 
 
 
Attachments: N/A 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Public Comments      
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended  
Action: TBD 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments:   
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(a) 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: May 31, 2016 LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 
 FY 2015-16 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date May 31, 2016 

FY 2015-2016 
Year to Date May 31, 2016 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 67% $8,064,135 $5,511,472 68% $10.3 Million 
Expenses YTD 67% $6,882,447 $5,557,036 81% $10.3 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through May 31, 2016 totaled $5.5 million or 68% of the YTD budget. 
 

Farebox and contract revenues reflect 109% of budgeted revenues through May 31, 2016.  The revenues are 
over budget due to several reasons, contractual revenues from RAMCO $93,000 received and contract revenue 
under budget $111,600 for UAP that lags one month. 
Farebox revenues are under budget $122,600 due to decline in ridership of 21%  
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.6 million or 99% of budget.  The total budgeted revenues is $3.65 million 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.6 million is being billed quarterly effective fiscal year 2014-2015.  The first 
billing covered the second quarter ending March 31, 2016.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean the 
services must be provided before we receive grant assistance. The grants for the JPA were lagging but will be 
realized in the next quarter. The year-to-date grant revenue totaled $159,000. 

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 

means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  
 

• Advertising income totaled $92,000 or 79% of YTD budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is over budget since other reimbursements are included. 
 

• Other revenues are not significant and are on a cash basis which means these revenues are recognized when the 
cash is received and in line with the year-to-date budget. 

 
 



 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date May 31, 2016 

FY 2015-2016 
 
 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through May 31, 2016 totaled $5.6 million or 81% of the YTD budget. 

• Salaries and benefits represent 63% of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  As of May 31, 2016 those expenses totaled 
$3.9 million or 90% of the YTD budget of $4.3 million due to vacant positions. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $203,000 or 73% of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $25,000 or 27% of the YTD budget.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $249,000 or 42% YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $429,000 under budget by 11% due to decrease use of parts and supplies, a 

favorable variance 
 

• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $20,000 under budget 17% offset with revenues. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for the City of Lakeland Bicycle 
Program subscription. 

 
• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments totaled $261,000, over the budget due to 

property appraiser fees and CRA fees of $139,200. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through May 31, 2016 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through May 31st the financials reflect an unfavorable actual 
variance of $46,000 due to receipt of property tax revenue at 99% level and the lagging of the FDOT and FTA 
revenues. However finance is in the process of getting reimbursed now that the FTA TrAMS system is functional and 
the JPA-FDOT agreements are in place. 

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                                                            9/30/15            9/30/2014       9/30/2013         9/30/2012            9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)        25.50%              23.08%               25.16%             23.02%                    20.32% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                              $89.45                $86.29               $83.84                $83.62                    $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                          103,550             117,008             116,422              112,539                  115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $847,360          $1,316,739       $1,367,289         $1,317,442           $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                  1,424,965           1,647,010         1,638,470           1,452,161              1,768,087 

 
 



7/
11

/2
01

6 
  1

0:
58

 A
M

\\C
C

-F
ile

Se
rv

er
\u

se
r\m

ha
rri

so
n\

1 
-L

AM
TD

 M
ee

tin
gs

\2
01

6 
LA

M
TD

 B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s 
M

ee
tin

g\
7)

 J
ul

y 
13

, 2
01

6\
Ag

en
da

 IT
EM

 5
(a

) -
 L

AM
TD

 F
in

an
ci

al
s

M
O

N
TH

 O
F 

 
(S

oR
E 

6/
3/

15
)

 

$'
s

%
$'

s
%

R
EV

EN
U

ES
:

15
Fa

re
bo

x/
Pa

ss
 S

al
es

49
,3

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
82

,2
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(3
2,

89
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-4
0%

53
5,

22
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
65

7,
82

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

(1
22

,6
04

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-1
9%

98
6,

74
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
17

C
on

tra
ct

 In
co

m
e 

(U
AP

)
18

,2
24

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

27
,7

87
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(9

,5
63

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-3

4%
11

0,
69

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

22
2,

29
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

11
,5

97
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-5

0%
33

3,
44

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

17
b

O
th

er
 C

on
tra

ct
 R

ev
en

ue
12

,5
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

42
,7

99
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(3

0,
26

8)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-7

1%
46

6,
52

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

34
2,

39
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
12

4,
12

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

36
%

51
3,

59
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
18

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
In

co
m

e
4,

41
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
83

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

58
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
43

0%
31

,5
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

6,
66

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
37

4%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

19
Ad

ve
rti

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

s
10

,4
22

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

14
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(4

,0
78

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-2

8%
92

,4
04

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

11
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
(2

3,
59

6)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-2

0%
17

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

20
In

ve
st

m
en

t/I
nt

er
es

t I
nc

om
e 

(n
et

)
2,

28
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
93

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
19

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
50

%
9,

52
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
74

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

77
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

76
%

1,
12

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
Ad

 V
al

or
um

 In
co

m
e,

 n
et

55
,7

79
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
55

,7
79

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0%
3,

61
3,

92
8

$ 
   

   
   

3,
61

3,
92

8
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0%

3,
64

8,
36

0
$ 

   
   

   
22

FD
O

T 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

G
ra

nt
49

,9
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

13
6,

79
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
(8

6,
83

1)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-6

3%
15

8,
71

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
09

4,
39

3
$ 

   
   

   
(9

35
,6

75
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-8

5%
1,

64
1,

59
0

$ 
   

   
   

23
Fe

de
ra

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
G

ra
nt

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
21

8,
67

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

(2
18

,6
73

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
24

,9
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
74

9,
38

7
$ 

   
   

   
(1

,7
24

,4
53

)
$ 

   
   

  
-9

9%
2,

62
4,

08
0

$ 
   

   
   

24
C

ha
rit

ab
le

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
C

os
t R

ec
ov

er
y

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0%
12

,9
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,9

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

27
Ba

rto
w

 E
xp

re
ss

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
40

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(4
,4

02
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-1
00

%
19

,1
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

35
,2

13
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(1

6,
05

6)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-4

6%
52

,8
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

27
b

PC
TS

 - 
Su

pp
or

t C
os

t R
ei

m
b.

37
,2

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
28

,1
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

9,
05

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
%

43
5,

82
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
22

5,
28

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

21
0,

53
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
93

%
33

7,
93

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

R
es

er
ve

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
ES

24
0,

17
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
61

2,
05

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

(3
71

,8
78

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-6
1%

5,
51

1,
47

2
$ 

   
   

   
8,

06
4,

13
5

$ 
   

   
   

(2
,5

52
,6

63
)

$ 
   

   
  

-3
2%

10
,3

23
,6

70
$ 

   
   

 

EL
IG

IB
LE

 E
XP

EN
SE

S:
32

Sa
la

rie
s

31
7,

20
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
36

2,
43

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

(4
5,

23
1)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-1
2%

2,
63

2,
38

8
$ 

   
   

   
2,

89
9,

49
1

$ 
   

   
   

(2
67

,1
03

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-9
%

4,
34

9,
23

7
$ 

   
   

   
33

Em
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

18
8,

29
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
17

9,
58

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

8,
71

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5%
1,

28
8,

86
5

$ 
   

   
   

1,
43

6,
64

6
$ 

   
   

   
(1

47
,7

80
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-1

0%
2,

15
4,

96
8

$ 
   

   
   

34
Ad

ve
rti

si
ng

 F
ee

s 
- A

dm
in

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,0

08
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-1
00

%
2,

42
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

06
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

,6
47

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-7

0%
12

,1
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

35
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 &

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 S

er
v.

18
,4

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
34

,5
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(1
6,

15
8)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-4
7%

20
3,

64
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
27

6,
53

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

(7
2,

89
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-2
6%

41
4,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
36

C
on

tra
ct

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

15
,3

45
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
7,

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

59
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
98

%
36

,8
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

62
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(2

5,
14

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-4

1%
93

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

37
O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
5,

24
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,5
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(6
,3

06
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-5
5%

24
,9

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
92

,3
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(6
7,

45
8)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-7
3%

13
8,

55
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

Fu
el

 &
 L

ub
ric

an
ts

 (n
et

)
11

,8
74

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

73
,4

28
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(6

1,
55

4)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-8

4%
24

9,
43

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

58
7,

42
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
(3

37
,9

90
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-5

8%
88

1,
13

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

39
Fr

ei
gh

t
35

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

32
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
12

%
2,

26
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

06
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

33
%

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
R

ep
ai

r &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 A

dm
in

 B
ld

g
1,

50
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
51

%
3,

52
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

,4
75

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-5

6%
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

42
M

at
er

ia
ls

 &
 S

up
pl

ie
s

64
,6

70
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
60

,4
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

4,
21

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7%
42

9,
30

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

48
3,

60
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
(5

4,
29

9)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-1

1%
72

5,
41

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

43
U

til
iti

es
/T

el
ep

ho
ne

 - 
Ad

m
in

6,
92

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
20

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,2

86
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-2
5%

62
,8

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
73

,6
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(1
0,

80
3)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-1
5%

11
0,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
44

Ph
ys

ic
al

 D
am

ag
e 

In
su

ra
nc

e
1,

98
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

15
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

73
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-8

%
16

,3
64

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

17
,2

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(8

69
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-5

%
25

,8
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

45
Li

ab
 &

 P
ro

p 
D

am
ag

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

16
,4

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
18

,2
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(1
,8

02
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-1
0%

13
9,

88
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
14

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

(6
,1

15
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-4
%

21
9,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
46

O
th

er
 C

or
po

ra
te

 In
su

ra
nc

e
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(5
8)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
1,

01
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
46

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

6%
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

D
ue

s 
& 

Su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

9,
06

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
52

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
53

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

49
3%

27
,4

34
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
12

,2
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

15
,2

01
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
12

4%
18

,3
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

49
Ed

uc
at

io
n/

Tr
ai

ni
ng

/M
ee

tin
g/

Tr
av

el
7,

85
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

08
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

77
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
29

%
56

,1
78

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

48
,6

87
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
7,

49
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

%
73

,0
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

50
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

ha
rg

es
1,

51
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

48
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,9
70

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-5

7%
9,

90
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

,8
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(1
7,

96
6)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-6
4%

41
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
51

O
ffi

ce
 E

xp
en

se
5,

32
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

09
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

22
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

%
52

,1
29

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

32
,7

69
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
19

,3
60

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

59
%

49
,1

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
52

Ad
ve

rti
si

ng
 &

 P
ro

m
ot

io
n

52
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

03
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,9
81

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-9

8%
19

,9
79

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

24
,2

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(4

,2
88

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-1

8%
36

,4
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

53
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

Ex
pe

ns
es

11
,0

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

85
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

16
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
49

5%
35

,6
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

14
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
20

,8
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

14
1%

22
,2

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
54

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
pp

ra
is

er
/T

ax
 C

ol
le

ct
or

 C
om

m
1,

11
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

,5
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(2
0,

41
8)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-9
5%

26
1,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
17

2,
26

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

89
,5

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
52

%
25

8,
40

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

55
PT

A/
W

in
te

r H
av

en
 B

illa
bl

e 
Ex

pe
ns

es
27

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
51

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

41
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

7%
28

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

13
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,8
53

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-9

3%
6,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
C

ap
ita

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
56

,7
16

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

45
3,

72
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
68

0,
59

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

TO
TA

L 
EL

IG
IB

LE
 E

XP
EN

SE
S:

68
4,

46
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
86

0,
30

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

(1
75

,8
37

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-2
0%

5,
55

7,
03

6
$ 

   
   

   
6,

88
2,

44
7

$ 
   

   
   

(1
,3

25
,4

11
)

$ 
   

   
  

-1
9%

10
,3

23
,6

70
$ 

   
   

 
N

ET
 R

EV
EN

U
ES

 O
VE

R
(U

N
D

ER
)  

EX
PE

N
SE

S
(4

44
,2

92
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
(2

48
,2

51
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
(1

96
,0

41
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
(4

5,
56

4)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

18
1,

68
8

$ 
   

   
   

(1
,2

27
,2

52
)

$ 
   

   
  

(0
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 

Ac
tu

al
B

ud
ge

t
Va

ria
nc

e

FY
 2

01
6

M
O

N
TH

LY
 F

IN
AN

C
IA

L 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

M
on

th
YT

D
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 A

nn
ua

l 
B

ud
ge

t
Ac

tu
al

B
ud

ge
t

Va
ria

nc
e

M
ay

 2
01

6



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(b) 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: May 31, 2016 Financials for Polk County Transit Services 

Contract – FY 2015-16 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(b) 

 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 
              Month of May 31, 2016 
                      Year to Date Report 
              Percent of FY Reported (67%) 

 
 

 
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $3.6 million or 82% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The FTA grant drawdown will occur later in the fiscal year based on expenses 

incurred on a reimbursement basis. 
 Fare Revenues totaled $80,303, or 65% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The County funding is designed to reflect a 1/12 allocation as cash advance to 

facilitate cash flow with receipt of $3.6 million. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $3.4 million or 77% of the year-to-date 

budget.  
 Salaries and wages totaled $1.7 million or 73% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $1.3 million or 85% of the YTD Budget. 
 The contract services is for contractual cost for the Lynx service and other 

planned contractual services. The year-to-date expenses totaled $388,000 or 
70% of the YTD Budget. 

 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Financial Statement 

Polk County Contract 
Month of May 2016 

 
 

Revenue 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Revenues            
FTA 5307 Grant  $         1,125,545  17%  $        750,363   $                  -  0% 
Fares  $            186,661  3%  $        124,441   $         80,303  65% 
PCTS  $         5,245,278  80%  $     3,496,852   $     3,496,852  100% 
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     4,371,656   $     3,577,155  82% 

      
      
      

Expenses 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Labor  $         3,434,803  52%  $     2,289,869   $     1,661,873  73% 
           
Contract  $            833,783  13%  $        555,855   $        387,585  70% 
            
Operating  $         2,288,898  35%  $     1,525,932   $     1,302,025  85% 
            
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     4,371,656   $     3,351,483  77% 

 



Po
lk

 C
ou

nt
y 

YT
D 

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r 
De

ce
m

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
To

ta
l

Pa
yr

ol
l 

11
3,

62
9.

21
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
8,

40
1.

06
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
0,

15
2.

88
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
8,

00
8.

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
0,

43
0.

28
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
7,

23
5.

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
2,

59
3.

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
1,

42
1.

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
66

1,
87

2.
72

$ 
  

O
pe

ra
tin

g
97

,6
22

.0
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
88

,6
76

.8
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

8,
27

6.
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

1,
86

0.
91

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

9,
01

8.
86

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

3,
31

1.
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

6,
62

3.
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
31

4,
21

9.
56

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

68
9,

60
9.

65
$ 

  
To

ta
l

21
1,

25
1.

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

23
7,

07
7.

89
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
8,

42
9.

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

42
9,

86
9.

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
9,

44
9.

15
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

52
0,

54
6.

88
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

61
9,

21
7.

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

53
5,

64
0.

66
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
35

1,
48

2.
38

$ 
  

 $
-

 $
50

,0
00

.0
0

 $
10

0,
00

0.
00

 $
15

0,
00

0.
00

 $
20

0,
00

0.
00

 $
25

0,
00

0.
00

 $
30

0,
00

0.
00

 $
35

0,
00

0.
00

 $
40

0,
00

0.
00

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
De

ce
m

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay

PC
TS

 F
in

an
ci

al
s

Pa
yr

ol
l

O
pe

ra
tin

g

 $
-

 $
10

0,
00

0.
00

 $
20

0,
00

0.
00

 $
30

0,
00

0.
00

 $
40

0,
00

0.
00

 $
50

0,
00

0.
00

 $
60

0,
00

0.
00

 $
70

0,
00

0.
00

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r
De

ce
m

be
r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay

To
ta

l



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

July 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(d) 

 
 
Agenda Item: National Transit Database Agreed Upon Procedures  
 Report FYE September 30, 2015 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: One of the requirements for submission of the annual National 

Transit Database (“NTD) Report is that an independent review 
of data and procedures be performed by a third party. The firm 
Crowe Horwath, LLP performed this review for the fiscal 2015 
NTD Report. 

 
 The review covers seven (7) aspects of the report, and is based 

upon FTA recommended procedures. The review of the 2015 
submitted report revealed no findings that are discussed in the 
attached report. 

 
 The financial information that goes into the NTD report at 

September 30, 2015 should agree with the District’s audited 
financial numbers. However, the financial data that was 
reported to the NTD has some slight variances due to the 
classification of the data. 

 
 
Attachments: FY 2014-15 National Transit Database UAP Report 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
 

NATIONAL TRANSIT DATABASE REPORT 
 

AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
 

Year ended September 30, 2015



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
Year ended September 30, 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON 
 APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES .................................................................................  2-3 
 
ATTACHMENT A – AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES ...........................................................................  4-10 
 
 
 



 
Crowe Horwath LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International 

 

 

 
(Continued) 

 
2. 

 
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON 

APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Lakeland, Florida 
 
 
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has established the following standards with regard to the data 
reported for the Federal Funding Allocation Data (Total Operating Expense data on F-30, line 15, column 
e, Form S-10, lines 12, 15, 18, 20, column d, Total Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile, Total Actual Vehicle 
Revenue Hour, Total Unlinked Passenger Trip data and Passenger Mile Traveled data) in the Lakeland 
Area Mass Transit District’s (LAMTD) annual National Transit Database (NTD) report): 

 A system is in place and maintained for recording data in accordance with NTD definitions. 
The correct data are being measured and no systematic errors exist.  

 A system is in place to record data on a continuing basis, and the data gathering is an 
ongoing effort.  

 Source documents are available to support the reported data and are maintained for FTA 
review and audit for a minimum of three years following FTA's receipt of the NTD report. 
The data are fully documented and securely stored.  

 A system of internal controls is in place to ensure the data collection process is accurate 
and that the recording system and reported comments are not altered. Documents are 
reviewed and signed by a supervisor, as required.  

 The data collection methods are those suggested by FTA or otherwise meet FTA 
requirements.  

 The deadhead miles, computed as the difference between the reported total actual vehicle 
miles data and the reported total actual vehicle revenue miles (VRM) data, appear to be 
accurate.  

 Data are consistent with prior reporting periods and other facts known about the LAMTD’s 
operations. 

We have applied the procedures described in Attachment A to the Total Operating Expense data on F-30, 
line 15, column e, Form S-10, lines 12, 15, 18, 20, column d, Total Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile, Total 
Actual Vehicle Revenue Hour, Total Unlinked Passenger Trip data and Passenger Mile Traveled data for 
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015. Such procedures, which were agreed to and specified by FTA 
in the Declarations section of the 2015 Reporting Manual and were agreed to by LAMTD, were applied to 
assist you in evaluating whether LAMTD complied with the standards described in the first paragraph of 
this part and that the information included in the NTD report Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form 
(FFA-10) form for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015 is presented in conformity with the 
requirements of the Uniform System of Accounts (USOA) and Records and Reporting System; Final Rule, 
as specified in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2015 
Reporting Manual. LAMTD management is responsible for the NTD report. This agreed-upon procedures 
engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those 
parties specified in this report. 
 



 
 

 
 

 
3. 

Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described in 
Attachment A either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.  This 
report is intended solely for your information and for FTA and should not be used by those who did not 
participate in determining the procedures.  
 
The procedures were applied to each of the information systems used to develop the reported actual vehicle 
revenue miles (VRM), fixed guideway directional route miles (FG DRM), passenger miles and operating 
expenses (OE) of the LAMTD for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015 for each of the following 
modes:   

 Motor Bus – directly operated 
 Demand Response – directly operated 

We were not engaged to, and did not conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion on the Federal Funding Allocation Data (Total Operating Expense data on F-30, 
line 15, column e, Form S-10, lines 12, 15, 18, 20, column d, Total Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile, Total 
Actual Vehicle Revenue Hour, Total Unlinked Passenger Trip data and Passenger Mile Traveled data and 
Fixed Guideway when applicable).  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  Also, we do not 
express an opinion on LAMTD’s system of internal control taken as a whole.   
 
In performing the procedures, findings came to our attention that are required to be reported to you 
regarding the data reported for the Federal Funding Allocation Data (Total Operating Expense data on F-
30, line 15, column e, Form S-10, lines 12, 15, 18, 20, column d, Total Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile, Total 
Actual Vehicle Revenue Hour, Total Unlinked Passenger Trip data and Passenger Mile Traveled data) for 
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015 which is presented in conformity with the requirements of the 
Uniform System of Accounts and Records and Reporting System; Final Rule, as specified in 49 CFR Part 
630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2014 Reporting Manual.  Such findings 
are reported in Attachment A.  Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to 
our attention that would have been reported to you.  This report relates only to the information described 
above, and does not extend to LAMTD’s financial statements taken as a whole, or the information in 
LAMTD’s NTD report other than the Federal funding allocation data (Total Operating Expense data on F-
30, line 15, column e, Form S-10, lines 12, 15, 18, 20, column d, Total Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile, Total 
Actual Vehicle Revenue Hour, Total Unlinked Passenger Trip data and Passenger Mile Traveled data), for 
any date or period. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of LAMTD and the FTA and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe Horwath LLP 
 
Lakeland, Florida 
June 15, 2016 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
ATTACHMENT A – AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 
 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
4. 

The procedures, to be applied to each applicable mode and type of service (directly operated and 
purchased transportation), are: 
 
1) Based on the FTA suggested procedures (a and b) provided as context below, compare written 

or described procedures to 3 months of activity for compliance with NTD definitions and 
requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented 
in the 2015 Reporting Manual. 

 
FTA Suggested Procedures: 

 
a. Obtain and read a copy of written procedures related to the system for reporting and maintaining 

data in accordance with the NTD requirements and definitions set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal 
Register, January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2015 Reporting Manual.  If procedures are not 
written, discuss the procedures with the personnel assigned responsibility for supervising the NTD 
data preparation and maintenance. 

 
b. Discuss the procedures (written or informal) with the personnel assigned responsibility for 

supervising the preparation and maintenance of NTD data to determine: 
 

 The extent to which the transit agency followed the procedures on a continuous basis, and 
 Whether they believe such procedures result in accumulation and reporting of data consistent 

with the NTD definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, 
January 15, 1993 and as presented in the 2015 Reporting Manual. 

 
Results of the agreed-upon procedures: 

 
We obtained and read a copy of the written procedures. We discussed the procedures with the 
personnel assigned responsibility for supervising the preparation and maintenance of the NTD data 
and we agreed three months (April 2015, March 2015, and May 2015) of reporting activity used for 
NTD reporting to identify that the transit agency followed the procedures on a continuous basis and 
that their procedures result in accumulation and reporting of data consistent with the NTD 
definitions and requirements set forth in 49 CFR Part 630, Federal Register, January 15, 1993 and 
as presented in the 2015 Reporting Manual. 

 
2) Based on the FTA suggested procedures (c and d) provided as context below, for each type of 

source document supporting the NTD report, which is required to be maintained for 3 years, 
determine whether the documents exist.  Documents may include information supporting actual 
vehicle revenue miles, passenger miles, fixed guideway directional route miles, operating 
expenses and contracts for purchased transportation services. 

 
FTA Suggested Procedures: 

 
c. Inquire of same personnel concerning the retention policy that is followed by the transit agency with 

respect to source documents supporting the NTD data, Total Modal Operating Expenses data (F-
30, line 15, column e), Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile and Passenger Miles Traveled (S-10, lines 12 
and 20, column d).  

 
d. Based on a description of the transit agency’s procedures obtained in items a and b above, identify 

all the source documents which are to be retained by the transit agency for a minimum of three 
years.  For each type of source document, select three months out of the year and determine 
whether the document exists for each of these periods. 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
ATTACHMENT A – AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 
 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
5. 

Results of the agreed-upon procedures: 
 
We inquired of the personnel assigned responsibility for supervising the preparation and 
maintenance of the NTD data for the document retention policy that is followed by the transit 
agency, identified the source documents to be retained and we selected three months (October, 
May, and September) and observed that original source documents were maintained for each of 
the previous three fiscal years (2013, 2014, and 2015). 
 

3) Based on the FTA suggested procedures (e and f) provided as context below, select a sample 
of 12 source documents and determine whether supervisors’ signatures are present as required 
by the system of internal controls.  Documents may include information supporting actual 
vehicle revenue miles, passenger miles, fixed guideway directional route miles, operating 
expenses and contracts for purchased transportation services. 

 
FTA Suggested Procedures: 

 
e. Discuss the system of internal controls with the person responsible for supervising and maintaining 

the NTD data. Inquire whether individuals, independent of the individuals preparing source 
documents and posting data summaries, review the source documents and data summaries for 
completeness, accuracy and reasonableness and how often such reviews are performed.  

 
f. Select a random sample of the source documents and determine whether supervisors' signatures 

are present as required by the system of internal controls. If supervisors' signatures are not 
required, inquire how the supervisors' reviews are documented.  

 
Results of the agreed-upon procedures: 
 

We discussed the system of internal controls with the people responsible for supervising and 
maintaining the NTD data and inquired of the individuals’ independence with regard to the 
preparation of the source documents and posting summaries and review of source documents. We 
noted management indicated there is a segregation of duties between the preparation of source 
documents and the posting of the summaries. During our testing of 12 randomly selected source 
documents, we noted that demand response daily reports do not contain a documented review. 
Daily reports for Motor Bus did not contain documentation of being reviewed; however this 
information is aggregated into monthly variance reports that are documented as reviewed by the 
operations and maintenance department.  As such, we obtained the monthly summaries where the 
source documents are aggregated, and noted that 2 out of the 3 months selected were not properly 
reviewed or approved as required by the system of internal controls. 
 

 
4) Based on the FTA suggested procedure (g) provided as context below, verify the arithmetical 

accuracy of worksheets used in preparation of the final data that are transcribed onto the 
Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form.   

 
FTA Suggested Procedures: 

 
g. Obtain the worksheets utilized by the transit agency to prepare the final data that are transcribed 

onto the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form. Compare the periodic data included on the 
worksheets to the periodic summaries prepared by the transit agency. Test the arithmetical 
accuracy of the summarizations.  

 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
ATTACHMENT A – AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 
 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
6. 

Results of the agreed-upon procedures: 
 

We obtained the worksheets and agreed the periodic data included on the worksheets to the 
periodic summaries prepared by the transit agency containing total operating expenses; total 
actual vehicle revenue miles, total actual vehicle revenue hours, total unlinked passenger trip 
data, and passenger mile traveled data, tested the arithmetical accuracy, and agreed them to 
the FFA-10 forms.   
 

On Form F-10 “Source of Funds – Funds Expenses and Funds Earned”, we noted the following 
discrepancies: 
 

 “Park and Ride, Auxiliary Funds, Non-Transportation, Other” was understated by $6. 
 
  On Form F-40 “Operating Expense Summary”, we noted the following discrepancies: 
 

 “Operators Salaries and Wages” was understated by $43,970, 
 “Other Salaries and Wages” were overstated by $43,970, 

 
On Form S-10 “Service Non-Rail” we noted that the following discrepancies for Motor Bus: 
 

 Vehicle Revenue Hours was overstated by 2 hours in total 
 

 
On Form S-10 “Service Non-Rail” we noted that the following discrepancies for Demand Response: 
 

 Vehicle Revenue Miles was overstated by 25 miles for total 
 Vehicle Revenue Hours was overstated by 402 hours in total 
 Unlinked Passenger Trips was understated by 169 trips in total 
 

5) Based on the FTA suggested procedures (h, i, j and k) provided as context below,  
 Determine that LAMTD uses an approved FTA statistical sampling method prescribed by 

FTA Circulars or an alternative sampling process approved by a licensed statistician. 
 Determine eligibility for periodic sampling on a 3 year cycle or annual cycle based on criteria 

in suggested procedure (i) below. 
 Determine that LAMTD followed the stated sampling procedure by examining sampling 

population and selection process during the year. 
 Select a random sample of 12 source documents for accumulating passenger mile data and 

determine that they are complete (all required data are recorded) and that the computations 
are arithmetically accurate.  Documents may include information supporting actual vehicle 
revenue miles, passenger miles, fixed guideway directional route miles, operating expenses 
and contracts for purchased transportation services. 

 Select a random sample of 3 accumulation periods and re-compute the accumulations for 
each of the selected periods.  List the accumulation periods that were verified.  Verify the 
arithmetical accuracy of the summarization.  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
ATTACHMENT A – AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 
 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
7. 

FTA Suggested Procedures: 
 

h. Discuss the transit agency's procedure for accumulating and recording passenger miles traveled 
(PMT) data in accordance with NTD requirements with transit agency staff. Inquire whether the 
procedure used is (1) a 100% count of actual PMT or (2) an estimate of PMT based on statistical 
sampling meeting FTA's 95% confidence and ±10% precision requirements. If the transit agency 
conducts a statistical sample for estimating PMT inquire whether the sampling procedure is (1) one 
of the two procedures suggested by FTA and described in FTA Circulars 2710.1A or 2710.2A; or 
(2) an alternative sampling procedure if the transit agency uses an alternative sampling procedure, 
inquire whether the procedure has been approved by FTA or whether a qualified statistician has 
determined that the procedure meets FTA's statistical requirements. Note as a negative finding in 
the report use of an alternative sampling procedure that has not been approved in writing by a 
qualified statistician.  

 
i. Discuss with transit agency staff (the accountant may wish to list the titles of the persons 

interviewed) the transit agency's eligibility to conduct statistical sampling for PMT data every third 
year. Determine whether the transit agency meets one of the three criteria that allow transit 
agencies to conduct statistical samples for accumulating PMT data every third year rather than 
annually. Specifically: 
 

1. According to the 2000 Census, the public transit agency serves an UZA of less than 
500,000 population. 

2. The public transit agency directly operates fewer than 100 revenue vehicles in all modes 
in annual maximum revenue service (VOMS) (in any size urbanized area). 

3. The service is purchased from a seller operating fewer than 100 revenue vehicles in 
VOMS, and is included in the transit agency's NTD report. 

 
For transit agencies that meet one of the above criteria, review the NTD documentation for the 
most recent mandatory sampling year (2014) and determine that statistical sampling was 
conducted and meets the 95% confidence and +10% precision requirements. 
 
Determine how the transit agency estimated annual PMT for the current report year. 

 
j. Obtain a description of the sampling procedure for estimation of PMT data used by the transit 

agency. Obtain a copy of the transit agency's working papers or methodology used to select the 
actual sample of runs for recording PMT data. If the average trip length was used, determine that 
the universe of runs was used as the sampling frame. Determine that the methodology to select 
specific runs from the universe resulted in a random selection of runs. If a selected sample run was 
missed, determine that a replacement sample run was randomly selected. Determine that the 
transit agency followed the stated sampling procedure. 
 

k. Select a random sample of the source documents for accumulating passenger mile data and 
determine that they are complete (all required data are recorded) and that the computations are 
accurate.  Select a random sample of the accumulation periods and recompute the accumulations 
for each of the selected periods.  List the accumulation periods that were tested.  Test the 
arithmetical accuracy of the summarization. 

 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
ATTACHMENT A – AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 
 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
8. 

Results of the agreed-upon procedures: 
 
 We obtained the transit agency’s procedure for accumulating and recording passenger miles 

traveled (PMT) data noting that for each of the modes operated the transit agency utilizes an 
approved FTA statistical sampling method as prescribed by FTA Circulars or an alternative 
sampling process approved by a licensed statistician. 

 The transit agency utilizes UMTA Circular C 2710.1A for MB/DO mode. 
 The transit agency utilizes a sampling plan for MB/DO mode prepared by a licensed 

statistician with a precision of 10% for a 95% confidence level. 
 The transit agency utilizes a 100% count for DR mode. 

 
 We discussed with the Controller that the transit agency is eligible to conduct statistical sampling 

for passenger mile (PM) every third year for Motor Bus. The transit agency is eligible for periodic 
sampling on a 3 year cycle because it serves an urbanized area with a population of less than 
500,000 and operates fewer than 100 revenue vehicles in all modes in annual maximum 
revenue service. 
 

 We inspected the documentation for the most recent mandatory sampling year and identified 
that statistical sampling was conducted. We identified the universe of runs used as the sampling 
frame and we identified that the methodology used to select specific runs from the universe 
resulted in a random selection.  We noted the following: 

 
o For the months of October 2013, January 2014, February 2014, and July 2014, 

LAMTD sampled 13, 10, 13, and 12 trips, respectively.  The minimum sampling 
requirement was 14 trips per month per the Qualified Statistician.   

 
 We selected a random sample of 12 source documents for accumulating passenger mile data 

for both Motorbus and Demand Response and noted that 1 out of the 12 was not arithmetically 
correct. Based on testing, the passenger miles for June 2015 was understated by 35 
passengers. 

 
 We selected a random sample of three monthly accumulations and the annual accumulation. 

We recomputed the accumulation periods without exception. We verified the arithmetical 
accuracy of the summarization without exception. We noted the Demand Response only has an 
annual accumulation.  We obtained that annual accumulation and verified the arithmetical 
accuracy of the summarization without exception. 

 
6) Based on the FTA suggested procedures (l, m and n) provided as context below,  
 

 If applicable, select a random sample of 3 source documents used to record charter and 
school bus mileage and verify the arithmetical accuracy of the computations. 

 If actual VRMs are calculated from vehicle logs, select a random sample of 12 vehicle logs 
across modes and determine that the deadhead mileage has been correctly computed in 
accordance with FTA’s definitions on accounting for miles and hours. 

 If actual VRMs are calculated from schedules, select a random sample of 12 days that 
service is operated and re-compute the daily total of missed trips and missed VRMs. 

 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
ATTACHMENT A – AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 
 
 

 
(Continued) 

 
9. 

FTA Suggested Procedures: 
 
l. Discuss the procedures for systematic exclusion of charter, school bus, and other ineligible vehicle 

miles from the calculation of actual vehicle revenue miles with transit agency staff and determine 
that stated procedures are followed. Select a random sample of the source documents used to 
record charter and school bus mileage and test the arithmetical accuracy of the computations. 

m. For actual vehicle revenue mile (VRM) data, document the collection and recording methodology 
and determine that deadhead miles are systematically excluded from the computation. This is 
accomplished as follows: 
 
If actual VRMs are calculated from schedules, document the procedures used to subtract missed 
trips. Select a random sample of the days that service is operated and recompute the daily total of 
missed trips and missed VRMs. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summarization. 
 
 If actual VRMs are calculated from hubodometers, document the procedures used to calculate 

and subtract deadhead mileage. Select a random sample of the hubodometer readings and 
determine that the stated procedures for hubodometer deadhead mileage adjustments are 
applied as prescribed. Test the arithmetical accuracy of the summarization of intermediate 
accumulations. 

 If actual VRMs are calculated from vehicle logs, select random samples of the vehicle logs and 
determine that the deadhead mileage has been correctly computed in accordance with FTA's 
definitions. 

 
n. For rail modes, review the recording and accumulation sheets for actual VRMs and determine that 

locomotive miles are not included in the computation. 
 
Results of the agreed-upon procedures: 

 
 We discussed with the Controller and noted that LAMTD does not provide charter or school 

bus service.  
 
 We inspected the collection and recording methodology used and noted that deadhead miles 

are systematically excluded the computation.  
 

 For Motor Bus, actual vehicle revenue miles are calculated from schedules. We 
inspected the procedures to subtract missed trips. We selected a random sample of 
twelve days and recalculated the arithmetical accuracy without exception. 

 For Demand Response, actual vehicle revenue miles are calculated from vehicle logs. 
We selected a random sample of 12 vehicle logs and tested the accuracy of the 
computation of deadhead mileage without exception. 

 
FTA Suggested Procedures o through s regarding fixed guideway facilities are not applicable to 
LAMTD and therefore are not included in the agreed-upon procedures.  

 
7) Based on the FTA suggested procedure (t) provided as context below, agree total operating 

expenses on the Operating Expense Summary to audited financial statement information. 
 
FTA Suggested Procedure: 
 

t. Compare operating expenses with audited financial data, after reconciling items are removed. 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
ATTACHMENT A – AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Year ended September 30, 2015 
 
 
 

 
 

 
10. 

Results of the agreed-upon procedure: 
 
We compared total operating expenses on the Operating Expense Summary to the financial 
statement information. The total operating expenses agreed with the audited financial data. 
 

FTA Suggested Procedures (u, v, and w) regarding allocating purchased transportation is not 
applicable to LAMTD and therefore are not included in the agreed-upon procedures.  
 
FTA Suggested Procedures x regarding allocating data to urbanized and non-urbanized areas is not 
applicable to LAMTD and therefore are not included in the agreed-upon procedures.  
 
8) Based on the FTA suggested procedures (y) provided as context below, compare the data 

reported on the Federal Funding Allocation Statistics form to comparable data for the prior 
report year and calculate the percentage change from the prior year to the current year.  For 
vehicle revenue mile, passenger mile, or operating expense data that have increased or 
decreased by more than 10%, determine that management has documented in writing 
descriptions regarding the specifics of operations that led to the increases or decreases in the 
data relative to the prior reporting period. 

 
FTA Suggested Procedures: 

 
y. Compare the data reported on Total Modal Operating Expenses data (F-30, line 15, column e), 

Actual Vehicle Revenue Mile and Passenger Miles Traveled (S-10, lines 12 and 20, column d) to 
comparable data for the prior report year and calculate the percentage change from the prior year 
to the current year. For actual VRM, PMT or OE data that have increased or decreased by more 
than 10%, or FG DRM data that have increased or decreased, interview transit agency 
management regarding the specifics of operations that led to the increases or decreases in the 
data relative to the prior reporting period.  
 

Results of the agreed-upon procedures: 
 
We compared the data reported for operating expenses; vehicle revenue miles, and passenger 
miles traveled to comparable data for the prior report year and calculated the percentage change 
from the prior year to the current year.  For motor bus, we noted that the Vehicle Revenue Mie and 
Unlinked Passenger Miles traveled decreased more than 10 percent. Per inquiry, management 
stated the decrease was due to the downsizing of operations and route reduction. For demand 
response, we noted that Vehicle Revenue Miles and Passenger Miles Traveled, and the Unlinked 
Passenger Miles traveled decreased by more than 10%. Per inquiry, management stated the 
decrease was due to Medicaid reform which decreased LAMTD’s passengers as they migrated to 
private providers, there is no longer a contract with APD for trips, as well as route reductions. 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

July 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(c) 

 
Agenda Item:  Proposed FY 2016-17 Millage Rate / Certificate of Taxable Value 

and Set Public Hearings for FY 2016-17 
  Millage Rate and Budget 
 
Presenter:  David Persaud, CFO 
 
Recommended 
Action:  Recommend approval of the proposed aggregate millage rate of 

.5000 mills and for the proposed FY 2016-17 Millage and Budget 
Public Hearings. 
 
Millage: 
FY 2016-17 Proposed Millage rate   .5000 
 
FY 2016-17 Current Year Aggregate  .4775 
Rolled-Back-Rate 
 
Current year proposed rate as a percent  4.71% 
Change of Rolled-Back-Rate 
 
The DR-420, Certification of Taxable Value, is due to the 
Property Appraiser by Thursday, August 4, 2016. A copy of the  
DR-420 Certificate of Taxable Value is attached using the 
maximum allowable millage rate of .5000, the current rate of 
.5000, and the aggregate rolled back rate of .4775. 
 
Public Hearings: 
First Public Hearing for FY 2016-17  Millage Rate and Budget: 
Wednesday, September 7, 2016, at 5:01PM at Lakeland City Hall, 
City Commission Conference Room, 228 S. Massachusetts Ave., 
Lakeland. 
 
Second Public Hearing (Final) FY 2016-17  Millage Rate and 
Budget: Wednesday, September 21, 2016 at 5:01PM at Lakeland 
City Hall, City Commission 
Conference Room, 228 S. Massachusetts Ave., Lakeland. 
 

Attachments:  Form DR-420, Certification of Taxable Value 
Form DR-420-TIF(s) – Tax Increment Adjustment Worksheet(s) 
Form DR-420MM-P – Maximum Millage Levy Calculation Preliminary 
Disclosure 





























LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #6(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Purchaser of Service Agreements 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby 
 
Recommended   
Action: Approval of service agreement for the Tampa Lighthouse 

for the Blind and Blind Services. 
  
Summary:  Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 

 



Service Agreement - 
Tampa Lighthouse for the Blind and  
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

 
 

This Service Agreement is entered into this _______ day of _________________, 

2016, by and among Tampa Lighthouse for the Blind (hereinafter referred to as 

“Lighthouse”), and the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District, an independent special 

taxing district (hereinafter referred to as the “District”). 

  

WHEREAS, Lighthouse desires to provide its clients the benefit of access to 

public transit; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the District operates public transit systems which currently provide 

transit service in Polk County;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, 

the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year commencing on 

July 1, 2016, through and including June 30, 2017.   

 

2. This Agreement shall terminate if Lighthouse or the District provide written  

notice of intent to terminate this Agreement (“Termination Notice”) to the other parties 

hereto, ninety (90) days prior to termination of the service.   

 

3. The District will allow Lighthouse clients access to the transit system for each 

fixed route transit trip in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

 

4. Hours of operation of bus service are defined as the number of hours each bus 

operates plus reasonable travel time each way to and from the District Operations Center 

located at 1212 George Jenkins Boulevard, Lakeland, Florida, or the County Operations 

Center located in Bartow or Winter Haven, Florida on Saturdays only. 

 

5. The rate to be charged to Lighthouse by the District for the transit service during 



the term of the Agreement will be $3.23.00 per revenue mile for ambulatory transit fares 

and $5.54.00 per revenue mile for wheelchair transit fares.  Lighthouse shall remit 

payment within 30 days from receipt of invoice.   

 

6. This Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions contained in any interlocal 

or other agreement between the District and any other governmental authority, including, 

without limitation, the City of Lakeland, the Polk Transit Authority, and the County of 

Polk, and between the County and any other governmental authority including, without 

limitation, the City of Lakeland, the Polk Transit Authority, and the District. Nothing in 

such agreements prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this agreement to 

deliver the various benefits specifically described herein. 

 

7. This Agreement is subject to all federal, state, and local laws, rules, and 

regulations with which the District and the County are obligated to comply. Nothing in 

such laws, rules or regulations prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this 

agreement to deliver the various benefits specifically described herein. 

 8.  Failure of any party to comply with any provision of this Agreement shall place 

that party in default.  Prior to terminating this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall 

notify the defaulting party in writing.  The notification shall make specific reference to 

the condition alleged to give rise to the default.  The defaulting party shall then be 

entitled to a period of fifteen (15) days from the date notification is received in which to 

cure the default.  If said default is not cured within the fifteen (15) day period, this 

Agreement may be terminated by the non-defaulting party.  The failure of any party to 

exercise this right shall not be considered a waiver of such right in the event of any 

further default or non-compliance. 

 

9. All notices, requests, demands and other communications which are required  

or may be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have 

been duly given when received if personally delivered; when transmitted if transmitted 

by telecopy, electronic telephone line facsimile transmission or other similar electronic 

or digital transmission method; the day after it is sent, if sent by recognized expedited 



delivery service; and five (5) days after it is sent, if mailed, first class mail, postage 

prepaid. In each case, notice shall be sent to: 

 

LIGHTHOUSE:  Tampa Lighthouse for the Blind 

   206 Avenue D NW  

   Winter Haven, Florida 33881 

   ATTN:  

 

DISTRICT:  Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

    1212 George Jenkins Boulevard 

    Lakeland, FL 33815 

    ATTN: Tom Phillips 

 

10. If any covenant or provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid,  

Illegal or incapable of being enforced, all other covenants and provisions of this 

Agreement shall, nevertheless, remain in full force and effect, and no covenant or 

provision shall be dependent upon any other covenant or provision unless so expressed 

herein. 

 

11. This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties  

and is a complete and exclusive statement of the Agreement between the parties.  Any 

renewals alterations, variations, modifications, amendments or waivers of provisions of 

this Agreement shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, duly signed, 

approved by all entities and attached to this Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes all 

other agreements and proposals, oral or written, regarding the subject matter herein, and 

all such other agreements and proposals are hereby deemed void. 

 

12. In the performance of this Agreement, the District will be acting in the  

capacity of independent contractors, and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venture, 

or associate of Lighthouse.  The District shall be solely responsible for the means, 

methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures utilized by the District in the full 

performance of this Agreement.  Neither the District nor any of the employees, officers, 

agents or any other individual directed to act on behalf of the District for any act related 



to this Agreement, shall represent, act, purport to act, or be deemed to be the agent, 

representative, employee or servant of Lighthouse. 

 

13. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of  

Florida and venue of any legal proceedings shall be in Polk County, Florida, if the action 

is commenced in state court. If any action is commenced in federal court, then venue 

shall be in the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida, Tampa 

Division. 

 

14. Nothing contained herein shall operate or be construed as a waiver of the  

District’s limit of liability as set forth in §768.28 of the Florida Statutes regardless of 

whether such claims are based in tort, contract, statute, strict liability, and negligence, 

product liability or otherwise.  

 

15. Each of the undersigned warrants and represents that he or she is authorized to  

execute this Agreement on behalf of the entity identified.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 

 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed 
for the uses and purposes therein expressed the day and year set forth above. 
                                                              

                                                               
TAMPA LIGHTHOUSE FOR THE 
BLIND 

 
 
 
___________________________________ BY:   
                                                                                                      
___________________________________  
Witnesses 
  

LAKELAND AREA MASS 
TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
____________________________________ BY:   
                                                                                          John E. Hall, Board Chairman 
____________________________________ 
Witnesses 
 
 
 



Service Agreement - 
Division of Blind Services and  

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 
 

This Service Agreement is entered into this _______ day of _________________, 

2016, by and among the Division of Blind Services, a division of the Florida Department 

of Education (hereinafter referred to as “Blind Services”), and the Lakeland Area Mass 

Transit District, an independent special taxing district (hereinafter referred to as the 

“District”). 

  

WHEREAS, Blind Services desires to provide its clients the benefit of access to 

public transit; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the District operates public transit systems which currently provide 

transit service in Polk County;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, 

the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year commencing on 

July 1, 2016, through and including June 30, 2017.   

 

2. This Agreement shall terminate if Blind Services or the District provide written  

notice of intent to terminate this Agreement (“Termination Notice”) to the other parties 

hereto, ninety (90) days prior to termination of the service.   

 

3. The District will allow Blind Services clients access to the transit system for each 

transit trip in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

 

4. Hours of operation of bus service are defined as the number of hours each bus 

operates plus reasonable travel time each way to and from the District Operations Center 

located at 1212 George Jenkins Boulevard, Lakeland, Florida, or the County Operations 

Center located in Bartow or Winter Haven, Florida on Saturdays only. 

 



5. The rate to be charged to Blind Services by the District for the transit service 

during the term of the Agreement will be $3.23.00 per revenue mile for ambulatory 

transit fares and $5.54.00 per revenue mile for wheelchair transit fares.  Blind Services 

shall remit payment within 30 days from receipt of invoice.   

 

6. This Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions contained in any interlocal 

or other agreement between the District and any other governmental authority, including, 

without limitation, the City of Lakeland, the Polk Transit Authority, and the County of 

Polk, and between the County and any other governmental authority including, without 

limitation, the City of Lakeland, the Polk Transit Authority, and the District. Nothing in 

such agreements prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this agreement to 

deliver the various benefits specifically described herein. 

 

7. This Agreement is subject to all federal, state, and local laws, rules, and 

regulations with which the District and the County are obligated to comply. Nothing in 

such laws, rules or regulations prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this 

agreement to deliver the various benefits specifically described herein. 

 8.  Failure of any party to comply with any provision of this Agreement shall place 

that party in default.  Prior to terminating this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall 

notify the defaulting party in writing.  The notification shall make specific reference to 

the condition alleged to give rise to the default.  The defaulting party shall then be 

entitled to a period of fifteen (15) days from the date notification is received in which to 

cure the default.  If said default is not cured within the fifteen (15) day period, this 

Agreement may be terminated by the non-defaulting party.  The failure of any party to 

exercise this right shall not be considered a waiver of such right in the event of any 

further default or non-compliance. 

 

9. All notices, requests, demands and other communications which are required  

or may be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have 

been duly given when received if personally delivered; when transmitted if transmitted 

by telecopy, electronic telephone line facsimile transmission or other similar electronic 

or digital transmission method; the day after it is sent, if sent by recognized expedited 



delivery service; and five (5) days after it is sent, if mailed, first class mail, postage 

prepaid. In each case, notice shall be sent to: 

 

BLIND SERVICES:  Division of Blind Services,  

Florida Department of Education 

   402 S. Kentucky Avenue, Suite 340  

   Lakeland, Florida 33801-5358 

   ATTN:  

 

DISTRICT:  Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

    1212 George Jenkins Boulevard 

    Lakeland, FL 33815 

    ATTN: Tom Phillips 

 

10. If any covenant or provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid,  

Illegal or incapable of being enforced, all other covenants and provisions of this 

Agreement shall, nevertheless, remain in full force and effect, and no covenant or 

provision shall be dependent upon any other covenant or provision unless so expressed 

herein. 

 

11. This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties  

and is a complete and exclusive statement of the Agreement between the parties.  Any 

renewals alterations, variations, modifications, amendments or waivers of provisions of 

this Agreement shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, duly signed, 

approved by all entities and attached to this Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes all 

other agreements and proposals, oral or written, regarding the subject matter herein, and 

all such other agreements and proposals are hereby deemed void. 

 

12. In the performance of this Agreement, the District will be acting in the  

capacity of independent contractors, and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venture, 

or associate of Blind Services.  The District shall be solely responsible for the means, 

methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures utilized by the District in the full 

performance of this Agreement.  Neither the District nor any of the employees, officers, 



agents or any other individual directed to act on behalf of the District for any act related 

to this Agreement, shall represent, act, purport to act, or be deemed to be the agent, 

representative, employee or servant of Blind Services. 

 

13. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of  

Florida and venue of any legal proceedings shall be in Polk County, Florida, if the action 

is commenced in state court. If any action is commenced in federal court, then venue 

shall be in the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida, Tampa 

Division. 

 

14. Nothing contained herein shall operate or be construed as a waiver of the  

District’s limit of liability as set forth in §768.28 of the Florida Statutes regardless of 

whether such claims are based in tort, contract, statute, strict liability, and negligence, 

product liability or otherwise.  

 

15. Each of the undersigned warrants and represents that he or she is authorized to  

execute this Agreement on behalf of the entity identified.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 

 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed 
for the uses and purposes therein expressed the day and year set forth above. 
                                                              

                                                               
DIVISION OF BLIND SERVICES 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
EDUCATION 

 
 
 
___________________________________ BY:   
                                                                                                      
___________________________________  
Witnesses 
  

LAKELAND AREA MASS 
TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
____________________________________ BY:   
                                                                                          John E. Hall, Board Chairman 
____________________________________ 
Witnesses 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #6(b) 

 
 
Agenda Item: LEGOLAND UAP Renewal 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby 
 
Recommended   
Action: Oral Presentation 
  
Summary:  Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments: LEGOLAND UAP 
 
 
 
 

 



Service Agreement - 
Merlin Entertainments Group Florida LLC, d.b.a LEGOLAND® Florida and  

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 
 

This Service Agreement is entered into this _______ day of _________________, 

2014, by and among Merlin Entertainments Group Florida, LLC, d/b/a LEGOLAND® 

Florida (hereinafter referred to as “LEGOLAND®”), and the LAKELAND AREA 

MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT, an independent special taxing district (hereinafter referred 

to as the “District” 

  

WHEREAS, LEGOLAND® desires to provide its employees the benefit of 

unlimited access to public transit as a means of commuting to LEGOLAND® and other 

activities; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the District operates public transit systems which currently provide 

fixed route bus service to and around LEGOLAND®; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, 

the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year 

commencing on  

September 1, 2016, through and including September 1, 2017.  This Agreement shall 

terminate if LEGOLAND® or the District provide written notice of intent to terminate 

this Agreement (“Termination Notice”) to the other parties hereto, ninety (90) days prior 

to termination of the service.   

 

2. The District will allow active LEGOLAND® employees unlimited access for 

each fixed route transit trip when the employees show the appropriate LEGOLAND® 

employee identification card.  The District shall provide unlimited free access to fixed 

route transit service for all current LEGOLAND® employees in accordance with the 

terms of this Agreement.  

 

3. Hours of operation of bus service are defined as the number of hours each bus 



operates plus reasonable travel time each way to and from the District Operations Center 

located at 1212 George Jenkins Boulevard, Lakeland, Florida, or the County Operations 

Center located in Bartow or Winter Haven, Florida. 

 

4. The base monthly rate to be charged to LEGOLAND® by the District for the 

transit service during the term of the Agreement will be $1,500.00.  LEGOLAND® shall 

remit payment within 30 days from receipt of invoice.   

 

5. LEGOLAND® agrees to provide all current employees with a photo 

identification card.   

 

6. LEGOLAND® will receive one premium vinyl bus wrap for one bus with 

LEGOLAND® artwork.  The design of the wrap will be provided by LEGOLAND® and 

must be approved by the District.  The District agrees to waive the monthly advertising 

fee for the bus for the term of this Agreement.  LEGOLAND® agrees to fund the 

installation of the wrap on the bus.  If the District determines that the wrap must be 

replaced at any time during the term of this Agreement due to damage or normal wear 

and tear, LEGOLAND® agrees to fund the purchase and installation of the replacement 

wrap.  If LEGOLAND® does not fund the purchase and installation of the replacement 

wrap within thirty (30) days of the District’s determination, LEGOLAND® agrees that 

the District may strip the wrap and place other advertising on the bus at the District’s 

discretion.  It is understood that the wrapped bus will operate on all routes in the entire 

territory of the District, and not just on the fixed routes described in this Agreement, as 

required by Title VI regulations. 

 

7. The District agrees to continue to title “Route 30” as the “LEGOLAND® Route 

30” during the term of this Agreement.  The District agrees that “LEGOLAND®” is a 

registered trademark and its permitted uses by them under this Agreement is governed by 

LEGOLAND®’s standard terms and conditions as are all other intellectual property 

belonging or licensed to LEGOLAND® (such as images appearing on the vinyl bus wrap 

described in paragraph 6 above). 

 

8. This Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions contained in any interlocal 



or other agreement between the District and any other governmental authority, including, 

without limitation, the City of Lakeland, the Polk Transit Authority, and the County of 

Polk, and between the County and any other governmental authority including, without 

limitation, the City of Lakeland, the Polk Transit Authority, and the District. Nothing in 

such agreements prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this agreement to 

deliver the various benefits specifically described herein. 

 

9. This Agreement is subject to all federal, state, and local laws, rules, and 

regulations with which the District is obligated to comply. Nothing in such laws, rules or 

regulations prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this agreement to deliver 

the various benefits specifically described herein. 

 10. Failure of any party to comply with any provision of this Agreement shall place 

that party in default.  Prior to terminating this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall 

notify the defaulting party in writing.  The notification shall make specific reference to 

the condition alleged to give rise to the default.  The defaulting party shall then be 

entitled to a period of fifteen (15) days from the date notification is received in which to 

cure the default.  If said default is not cured within the fifteen (15) day period, this 

Agreement may be terminated by the non-defaulting party.  The failure of any party to 

exercise this right shall not be considered a waiver of such right in the event of any 

further default or non-compliance. 

 

11. All notices, requests, demands and other communications which are required 

or may  

be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly 

given when received if personally delivered; when transmitted if transmitted by 

telecopy, electronic telephone line facsimile transmission or other similar electronic or 

digital transmission method; the day after it is sent, if sent by recognized expedited 

delivery service; and five (5) days after it is sent, if mailed, first class mail, postage 

prepaid. In each case, notice shall be sent to: 

 

LEGOLAND®: Merlin Entertainments Group Florida, LLC 

   One LEGOLAND® Way 



   Winter Haven, FL 33884 

   ATTN: Virginie Schena 

 

DISTRICT:  Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

    1212 George Jenkins Boulevard 

    Lakeland, FL 33815 

    ATTN: Tom Phillips 

12. If any covenant or provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid, 

illegal or  

incapable of being enforced, all other covenants and provisions of this Agreement shall, 

nevertheless, remain in full force and effect, and no covenant or provision shall be 

dependent upon any other covenant or provision unless so expressed herein. 

 

13. This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties 

and is a complete and exclusive statement of the Agreement between the parties.  Any 

renewals alterations, variations, modifications, amendments or waivers of provisions of 

this Agreement shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, duly signed, 

approved by all entities and attached to this Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes all 

other agreements and proposals, oral or written, regarding the subject matter herein, and 

all such other agreements and proposals are hereby deemed void. 

 

14. In the performance of this Agreement, the District will be acting in the  

capacity of independent contractors, and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venture, 

or associate of LEGOLAND®.  The District shall be solely responsible for the means, 

methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures utilized by the District in the full 

performance of this Agreement.  Neither the District nor any of the employees, officers, 

agents or any other individual directed to act on behalf of the District for any act related 

to this Agreement, shall represent, act, purport to act, or be deemed to be the agent, 

representative, employee or servant of LEGOLAND®. 

 

15. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Florida and venue of any legal proceedings shall be in Polk County, Florida, if the action 

is commenced in state court. If any action is commenced in federal court, then venue 



shall be in the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida, Tampa 

Division. 

 

16. Subject to the District’s rights of sovereign immunity, the District shall indemnify 

and hold harmless LEGOLAND® and its members, managers, agents, officers, and 

employees from and against all claims, actions, damages, liabilities and expenses in 

connection with loss of life, bodily or personal injury or property damage or destruction: 

(i) arising from or out of any occurrence in, upon, at or from the operation of the public 

transit systems referenced in this Agreement; (ii) arising from the use by any person of 

the public transit systems; or (iii) caused by any act or omission by the District, their 

agents, contractors, employees, licensees, concessionaires, guests, invitees or patrons to 

the extent and limits provided by law as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.; 

except District shall not have to indemnify and hold harmless LEGOLAND® if such 

claim, damage, loss, and expense is the result of the negligence of LEGOLAND®. 

 

17. LEGOLAND®  shall indemnify and hold harmless the District, and its members, 

managers, agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, actions, damages, 

liabilities and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs) in 

connection with loss of life, bodily or personal injury or property damage or destruction: 

(i) arising from or out of any occurrence in, upon, at or from the operation of the public 

transit systems referenced in this Agreement; (ii) arising from the use by any person of 

the public transit systems; or (iii) caused by any act or omission by LEGOLAND®, their 

agents, contractors, employees, licensees, concessionaires, guests, invitees or patrons to 

the extent and limits provided by law; except LEGOLAND® shall not have to indemnify 

and hold harmless the District if such claim, damage, loss, and expense is the result of the 

negligence of the District. 

 

18. Nothing contained herein shall operate or be construed as a waiver of the  

District’s limit of liability as set forth in §768.28 of the Florida Statutes regardless of 

whether such claims are based in tort, contract, statute, strict liability, and negligence, 

product liability or otherwise.  

 

19. Each of the undersigned warrants and represents that he or she is authorized to  



execute this Agreement on behalf of the entity identified.   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed 

for the uses and purposes therein expressed the day and year set forth above. 
                                                              

                                                              
MERLIN ENTERTAINMENTS 
GROUP  
FLORIDA, LLC 

 
 
 
___________________________________ BY:   
                                                                                                      
___________________________________  
Witnesses 
  

LAKELAND AREA MASS 
TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
____________________________________ BY:   
 
                                                                                          John E. Hall, Board Chairman 
____________________________________ 
Witnesses 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #7(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: CBA Amendment #2 
 
Presenter: Marcy Harrison 
 
Recommended   
Action: Approval for Sections 1 and 9 of Article 21, Vacation & 

Sick Leave.   
  
Summary:  Article 21 of CBA Vacation & Sick Leave 
   Section 1 Current - New regular full-time employees  
   eligible for vacation leave shall accrue vacation hours  
   during the probationary period but are not eligible to use  
   any paid vacation until completion of the ninety (90) day  
   probationary period (does not apply to new hires during  
   the Bus Operator training phase; the probationary period  
   begins upon successful completion of the training   
   program).   
 
   Section 1, Sentence Addition - For those employees that  
   have a pre-planned event, approval may be granted,  
   prior to the next bidding cycle, for unpaid time off, by  
   submitting the supporting documentation to their   
   Director and Human Resources.  
 
   Section 9, First Sentence, Current - Vacation hours are  
   accrued based upon the employee’s full-time hire date,  
   and will be paid according to the employee’s normal  
   work schedule. 
 
   Section 9, First Sentence, Revision – Vacation hours are  
   accrued based upon the employee’s full-time hire date  
   and the completion of the ninety (90) day probationary  
   period. 
 
 
Attachments: Amendment to CBA 



AN AMENDMENT OF THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
 BETWEEN LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 AND TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AMERICA AFL-CIO LOCAL 525  
 

 
WHEREAS, on October 1, 2015, Lakeland Area Mass Transit District and Transport Workers Union of America AFL-CIO Local 525 
entered into a Collective Bargaining Agreement and; 
 
WHEREAS, Article 21 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement under the Vacation & Sick Leave Section 1, requires 
new regular full-time employees eligible for vacation leave shall accrue vacation hours during the probationary period but are not 
eligible to use any paid vacation until completion of the ninety (90) day probationary period (does not apply to new hires during the 
Bus Operator training phase; the probationary period begins upon successful completion of the training program).  Section 9 states 
that vacation hours are accrued based upon the employee’s full-time hire date, and will be paid according to the employee’s normal 
work schedule. 
 
WHEREAS, since the execution of the Collective Bargaining Agreement, additional verbiage has been determined necessary to clarify 
the Vacation Leave Section 1 and 3.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by Lakeland Area Mass Transit District and Transport Workers Union of America AFL-CIO Local 
525 that: 
 
First Amendment to Article 21, Vacation & Sick Leave Sections 1 and 9 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District and Transport Workers Union of America AFL-CIO Local 525 hereby approve the additional 
verbiage under Article 21 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement. This amendment will take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 Vacation & Sick Leave 
 Section 1 Current - New regular full-time employees eligible for vacation leave shall accrue vacation hours during the 
 probationary period but are not eligible to use any paid vacation until completion of the ninety (90) day probationary 
 period (does not apply to new hires during the Bus Operator training phase; the probationary period begins upon successful 
 completion of the training program).   
 
 Section 1, Sentence Addition - For those employees that have a pre-planned event, approval may be granted, prior to 
 the next bidding cycle, for unpaid time off, by submitting the supporting documentation to their Director and Human 
 Resources.  
 
 Section 9, First Sentence, Current - Vacation hours are accrued based upon the employee’s full-time hire date, and will be 
 paid according to the employee’s normal work schedule. 
 
 Section 9, First Sentence, Revision – Vacation hours are accrued based upon the employee’s full-time hire date and the 
 completion of the ninety (90) day probationary period. 
 
 
 Passed and Adopted this 13th day of July 2016, by the following: 
 
 Transport Workers Union Local 525   Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 
 _________________________________________  ________________________________________ 
 Wes Warren, TWU Section Chairman   Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
 _________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
 Witness       Witness 
 
 
 
 Lakeland Area Mass Transit District Board of Directors 
 
 _________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
 John Hall, Chairman     Witness 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #7(b) 

 
 
Agenda Item: CBA Amendment Article 19 Mode Selection 
 
Presenter: Marcy Harrison 
 
Recommended   
Action: Approval  
  
Summary:  CBA Article 19 - Modes Selection 
   The first Monday in June of each year all bus operators  
   will be given a Mode Intent Form.  Operators will choose 
   the mode of service they intend to bid for the next two  
   (2) bid picks.  Operators must select either Para-transit or 
   Fixed Route exclusively.  Extra Board assignments may  
   be required to fill both modes.  
  
   Modes Selection Revision – The first Monday in June all  
   bus Operators will be given a Mode Intent form.    
   Operators will choose the mode of service they intend to  
   bid one year after the mode selection has been requested.  
   Extra Board assignments may be required to fill both  
   modes.  
 
 
Attachments: Amendment to the CBA 
 
 
 
 

 



AN AMENDMENT OF THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
 BETWEEN LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 AND TRANSPORT WORKERS UNION OF AMERICA AFL-CIO LOCAL 525  
 

WHEREAS, on October 1, 2015, Lakeland Area Mass Transit District and Transport Workers Union of America 
AFL-CIO Local 525 entered into a Collective Bargaining Agreement and; 
 
WHEREAS, Article 19 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement under the Modes Selection, The first Monday in 
June of each year all bus operators will be given a Mode Intent Form.  Operators will choose the mode of 
service they intend to bid for the next two (2) bid picks.  Operators must select either Para-transit or Fixed 
Route exclusively.  Extra Board assignments may be required to fill both modes.  
 
WHEREAS, since the execution of the Collective Bargaining Agreement, additional verbiage has been 
determined necessary to clarify the Modes Selection.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by Lakeland Area Mass Transit District and Transport Workers Union of 
America AFL-CIO Local 525 that: 
 
First Amendment to Article 19, Modes Selection of the Collective Bargaining Agreement 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District and Transport Workers Union of America AFL-CIO Local 525 hereby 
approve the additional verbiage under Article 19 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement. This amendment will 
take effect immediately upon its passage. 
  
 Modes Selection 
 The first Monday in June of each year all bus operators will be given a Mode Intent Form.  Operators 
 will choose the mode  of service they intend to bid for the next two (2) bid picks.  Operators must select 
 either Para-transit or Fixed Route exclusively.  Extra Board assignments may be required to fill both 
 modes.  
 
 Modes Selection Revision – The first Monday in June all bus Operators will be given a Mode Intent form.  
 Operators will  choose the mode of service they intend to bid one year after the mode selection has been 
 requested.  Extra Board assignments may be required to fill both modes.  
 
  
 Passed and Adopted this 13th day of July 2016, by the following: 
 
 Transport Workers Union Local 525   Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 
 _________________________________________  ________________________________________ 
 Wes Warren, TWU Section Chairman   Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
 _________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
 Witness       Witness 
 
 
 Lakeland Area Mass Transit District Board of Directors 
 
 _________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
 John Hall, Chairman     Witness 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #8 

 
 
Agenda Item: Board Action(s) 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended   
Action: None 
  
Summary:  None 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #9(a) 

Agenda Item: Executive Updates 

Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 

Recommended 
Action: Oral Presentation 

Summary: 

• Monthly Activities Report

UAP Ridership•





UAP Ridership Totals 2015-16 LAMTD WHAT Total
April 15,834 11,055 26,889
May 14,321 10,225 24,546

UAP Ridership 2015-16 LAMTD WHAT Total
Polk State College

April 3,409                         1,655                    5,064                    
May 2,733                         1,165                    3,898                    

LEGOLAND
April 170                            1,415                    1,585                    
May 270                            1,706                    1,976                    

South Eastern University
April 304                            34                          338                       
May 191                            26                          217                       

Everest University
April 644                            103                       747                       
May 1,037                         149                       1,186                    

COLTS
April 2,123                         1,664                    3,787                    
May 1,631                         1,491                    3,122                    

Veterans
April 3,305                         1,228                    4,533                    
May 3,278                         1,201                    4,479                    

Southern Technical College
April 284                            648                       932                       
May 271                            636                       907                       

Polk Health Care
April 2,657                         1,163                    3,820                    
May 2,658                         1,102                    3,760                    

Polytechnic
April 1,317                         51                          1,368                    
May 171                            71                          242                       

Central Florida Healthcare
April 1,818                         416                       2,234                    
May 1,562                         449                       2,011                    

New Beginnings High School
April 447                            2,781                    3,228                    
May 519                            2,229                    2,748                    



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: JULY 13, 2016  
AGENDA ITEM #9(b) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Ridership Report 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended  
Action: Information only 
 
 
 
Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system 

including LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand 
Response through May, 2016 

  
  
 
 
Attachments: Ridership Report 
  
 
 















LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #9(c) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Proposed Elimination of Route 3X 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended 
Action: Approve the proposed elimination of Route 3X effective 

August 17, 2016 pending public outreach. 
 
Summary: The agreement between LAMTD and the Polytechnic 

University has expired.  The University had decided to 
provide the service in house, and as a result the District 
needs to discontinue this service.  The funding was 
primarily from the University. 

 
 The public workshop occurred at the Lakeland Terminal 

on Tuesday, July 12th with data forthcoming. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Pr
op

os
ed

 E
lim

in
at

io
n 

of
 

Ro
ut

e 
3X

 -
Fl

or
id

a 
Po

ly
te

ch
ni

c 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

,
W

es
ts

id
e 

Su
nd

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 R

ou
te

 3







St
op

s 
El

im
in

at
ed

 fr
om

 R
ou

te
 3

 In
cl

ud
e:

Th
e 

La
nd

in
gs

 a
t L

on
g 

La
ke

 is
 a

 lu
xu

ry
 a

pa
rt

m
en

t c
om

m
un

ity
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

La
ke

la
nd

 F
l.,

 ju
st

 o
ff 

of
 I-

4 
ne

ar
 th

e 
La

ke
la

nd
 S

qu
ar

e 
M

al
l, 

La
ke

la
nd

 L
in

de
r

Re
gi

on
al

 A
irp

or
t, 

an
d 

Fl
or

id
a 

Po
ly

te
ch

ni
c 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
. T

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 h
as

 2
40

 
un

its
 a

nd
 h

ou
se

s 
ov

er
 7

,2
00

 re
sid

en
ts

.

Fl
or

id
a 

Po
ly

te
ch

ni
c 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
, s

ta
rt

ed
 a

s a
 u

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f S

ci
en

ce
, E

ng
in

ee
rin

g,
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 a
nd

 M
at

he
m

at
ic

s 
(S

TE
M

) e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 2

01
2.

 It
s s

tu
de

nt
 c

ou
nt

 is
ov

er
 1

,3
00

 a
nd

 is
 p

ow
er

fu
l r

es
ou

rc
e 

fo
r h

ig
h-

te
ch

 in
du

st
rie

s 
in

 F
lo

rid
a 

an
d 

al
l

th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
.

Su
nd

ay
’s 

W
es

t s
id

e 
co

rr
id

or
 w

ill
 e

lim
in

at
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 th

e 
La

ke
la

nd
 T

er
m

in
al

, 
W

at
so

n 
Cl

in
ic

 P
ol

k 
Co

un
ty

 H
ea

lth
, P

la
nt

at
io

n 
Sq

ua
re

 P
ub

lix
, a

nd
 th

e 
La

ke
la

nd
 

Sq
ua

re
 M

al
l.



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 13, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #10 

 
 
Agenda Item: Other Business 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: None 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA
	Citrus Connection Retreat Summary 2016
	Agenda Item 2(a) - Minutes
	6-8-2016  Minutes
	Agenda Item 3(a) - GEM Awards
	Agenda Item 4(a) - Public Comments
	Agenda ITEM 5(a) - LAMTD Financials Cover
	Agenda ITEM 5(a) - March  Financial Report 2
	Agenda ITEM 5(a) - LAMTD Financials
	YTD

	Agenda ITEM 5(b) - PCFS Cover
	Agenda ITEM 5(b) - PCTS Financials
	Agenda ITEM 5(b) - PCTS Report
	Agenda ITEM 5(d) - NTD
	Agenda ITEM 5(d) - NTD 9.30.15 AUP Report
	Agenda ITEM 5(c) - Certification of Taxable Value
	Agenda ITEM 6(a) - Legal
	Agenda ITEM 7(a) - E & L Relations
	CBA Amendment 2
	Agenda ITEM 7(b) - E & L Relations
	CBA Amendment 3
	Agenda ITEM 8 - Board Action
	Agenda ITEM 9(a) - Executive Report
	Agenda ITEM 9(b) - Ridership Agenda 6-8-16
	Agenda ITEM 9(b) - Ridership Report May
	Florida Polytechnic Update 7-11-2016
	Proposed elimination of Route 3X - Florida Polytechnic�University & Route 3
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Stops Eliminated from Route 3 Include:

	June Calendar
	Route 3 and 3x Elimination.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Stops Eliminated from Route 3 Include:

	Ridership Spreadsheet.pdf
	Sheet1

	YTD PCTS Financials.pdf
	Sheet1




